
 
 

 
NOTES: 

(1) Members are reminded that copies of all representations received are available for inspection in the 
Members’ Room 

(2)  NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this 
meeting will be broadcast live on its website and the record archived. The live broadcast is accessible 
at: www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm  

REGULATORY COMMITTEE 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
MEETING 11.15 am WEDNESDAY, 16 MARCH 2022 
 
 
COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 
++ THE COMMITTEE WILL MEET IN PERSON ++  
 
 
MEMBERSHIP -  Councillor Tom Liddiard (Chair)  

Councillors Barry Taylor (Vice Chair), Abul Azad, Kathryn Field, 
Eleanor Kirby-Green, Pat Rodohan and Trevor Webb 
 

 
A G E N D A  
 
1.   Minutes of the meeting held on 16 February 2022  (Pages 3 - 6) 

 
2.   Apologies for absence   

 
3.   Disclosures of interests   

Disclosures by all members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the member regards the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct. 

 
4.   Urgent items   

Notification of items which the Chair considers to be urgent and proposes to take at the 
appropriate part of the agenda. Any members who wish to raise urgent items are asked, 
wherever possible, to notify the Chair before the start of the meeting. In so doing, they 
must state the special circumstances which they consider justify the matter being 
considered urgent. 

 
County Matter Proposals - report(s) by the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport  
 
5.   Temporary widening of the treatment works access with Shrub Lane and temporary use 

of land adjacent to the works as a compound to include vehicle turning (part-
retrospective). Burwash Water Treatment Works, Burwash, TN19 7EB - RR/861/CM  
(Pages 7 - 16) 
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 
 

6.   Any other items previously notified under agenda item 4   
 

 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent  

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm


 

 

LEWES BN7 1UE 8 March 2022 
 
Contact Simon Bailey, Democratic Services Officer,  
01273 481935 
Email: simon.bailey@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
 



 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

MINUTES of a meeting of the Planning Committee held at Council Chamber, County Hall, 
Lewes on 16 February 2022. 

 

 

PRESENT  Councillors Tom Liddiard (Chair), Barry Taylor (Vice Chair), Abul Azad, 
Kathryn Field, Eleanor Kirby-Green, Pat Rodohan and Trevor Webb 

 

 

ALSO PRESENT Councillor Geary 

 

 

20. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 19 JANUARY 2022  

 
20.1 The Committee approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 19 

January 2022.  

 

21. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

21.1 There were no apologies for absence. 

 

22. DISCLOSURES OF INTERESTS  

 

22.1 There were no disclosures of interests. 

 

23. URGENT ITEMS  

 

23.1 There were no urgent items. 

 

24. REPORTS  

 

24.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book. 

 

25. NEW HOSPITALITY SUITE WITHIN THE EXISTING WINERY AND THE CREATION 
OF A NEW ALFRESCO AREA WITH ASSOCIATED LANDSCAPING. RIDGEVIEW WINE 
ESTATE, FRAGBARROW LANE, DITCHLING COMMON, BN6 8TP (CROSS BORDER 
APPLICATION) - ESCC/2020/002/CB  

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 

 

 

25.1 The Committee considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport. 
 
25.2 Mr Henden, a local resident spoke to highlight highways issues relating to the 
application. 
 
25.3 Tamara Roberts, CEO of Ridgeview spoke in support of the proposal and officer’s 
recommendation. 
 
25.4 An amendment to Condition 5 was proposed and seconded in connection with signage 
for the passing places on Fragbarrow Lane. 
 
25.5 Members have considered the report and comments of the public speakers together with 
the proposed amendment to Condition 5 and agree with the officer’s conclusion and reason for 
recommendation set out in paragraph 8 of the report. 
 
25.6 The Committee unanimously RESOLVED to grant planning permission, subject to the 
following conditions including amendment to Condition 5: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration of three 

years from the date of this permission. 
  
 Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the drawings 

and documents listed in the Schedule of Approved Plans. 
  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
3. The use hereby permitted shall not commence until details of improvements to the access 

and the specification for the construction of the access, which shall include details of the 
improved junction radii, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Director of 
Communities, Economy and Transport and the use hereby permitted shall not commence 
until the construction of the access has been completed in accordance with the agreed 
improvements and specification. 

  
 Reason: To ensure the safety of persons and vehicles entering and leaving the access 

and proceeding along the highway. 
 
4. The use hereby permitted shall not commence until a turning space for heavy goods 

vehicles has been provided and constructed in accordance with the approved Vehicle 
Tracking drawing no. 10910/1170 Rev P6 in the Transport Statement, dated June 2021, 
by GTA Civils and Transport and the turning space shall thereafter be retained for that use 
and shall not be obstructed.  

  
 Reason: in the interests of safety for both pedestrians and drivers of vehicles within the 

Wine Estate. 
 
5. The use hereby permitted shall not commence until details of (i) works to repair the speed 

humps and (ii) signage identifying on-coming passing bays along the Fragbarrow Lane 
access, including a timetable for implementation, have been submitted to and approved in 
writing with the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport. The approved details 
shall be carried out in full. 

  

Page 4



 

 

 

 

 Reason: In the interests of the amenity and safety of nearby residents and other users of 
the access.   

 
6. The development shall not be occupied until additional parking spaces have been 

provided in accordance with details which have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport and the areas shall thereafter be 
retained for that use and shall not be used other than for the parking of motor vehicles, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Director. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of the safety of persons using the site.  
 
7. The development shall not be occupied until cycle parking areas have been provided in 

accordance with details which have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport and the areas shall thereafter be 
retained for that use and shall not be used other than for the parking of cycles. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of the safety of persons using the site and to demonstrate that the 

site is accessible by non-car modes of transport and to contribute to meeting the 
objectives of sustainable development.  

 
8. The development shall not be occupied until details of a parking booking scheme and a 

scheme for the provision of a minibus service have been submitted to and approved in 
writing with the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport and the approved 
schemes shall thereafter be implemented and maintained. 

  
 Reason: In order that the development is accessible by non-car modes of transport and to 

contribute to meeting the objectives of sustainable development. 
  
INFORMATIVES 
 
1. The applicant is reminded that, under the Conservation of Habitats and Species 

Regulations 2017 (as amended) and the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), 
it is an offence to: deliberately capture, disturb, injure or kill great crested newts; damage 
or destroy a breeding or resting place; deliberately obstructing access to a resting or 
sheltering place. Planning approval for a development does not provide a defence against 
prosecution under these Acts. Should great crested newts be found at any stages of the 
development works, then all works should cease, and Natural England should be 
contacted for advice. 

 
2. The applicant should consider removing the signage at the access which refers to the 

prohibition of cycling along it. 
 
Schedule of Approved Plans 
 
Travel Plan Statement, ref. 10910B, January 2021, GTA Civils & Transport, LXA-1502-001 D - 
Site Location Plan, LXA-1502-002-C - Site Block Plan, Vehicle Tracking - 10910/1170 Rev P6, 
Transport Statement dated June 2021, Transport Statement Addendum, ref. 10910, October 
2021, GTA Civils & Transport 

 

26. TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER - EASTBOURNE BOROUGH PARKING REVIEW  

 

26.1 The Committee considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport. 

Page 5



 

 

 

 

 

26.2 Councillor Barry Taylor as the local member spoke in support of the officer’s 
recommendation in respect of Site 2 – Duke’s Drive, Wellcombe Crescent and Upper Duke’s 
Drive. 

 

26.3 The Committee has considered the officer’s report and the comments of the local 
Members and agree with the conclusions and reasons for recommendations as set out in 
paragraph 3 of the report. 

 
26.4 The Committee unanimously RESOLVED to (1) uphold the objections to the draft Order 
as set out in Appendix 1 of this report: 
(2) Not uphold the objections to the draft Order as set out in Appendix 2 of this report: and 
(3) Recommend to the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport that the Traffic 
Regulation Order be made in part. 
 
26.5 The Committee expressed their thanks to Michael Blaney for his work with the 
Committee over several years. 

 

 

 

The meeting ended at 11.21 am. 

 

 

Page 6



 
Committee:  Regulatory  

Planning Committee 
 

Date: 16 March 2022 
 

Report by: Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 
 

Proposal: Temporary widening of the treatment works access with 
Shrub Lane and temporary use of land adjacent to the 
works as a compound to include vehicle turning (part-
retrospective) 
 

Site Address: Burwash Water Treatment Works, Shrub Lane, Burwash 
 

Applicant: Mr Lawrence Blyth, Southern Water Services Ltd. 
 

Application No. RR/861/CM 
 

Key Issues: (i)  Purpose of the development 
(ii)  Effects of the development 

 
Contact 
Officer:     
 

Jeremy Patterson 
 

Local Member:  
    

Councillor Eleanor Kirby-Green 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. To grant planning permission subject to conditions as indicated 
in paragraph 8.1 of this report. 
 

CONSIDERATION BY DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITIES, ECONOMY AND 
TRANSPORT 

1. The Site and Surroundings 
 
1.1 The application site is approximately 1.3 kilometres to the north-east of 
the junction of Shrub Lane, a classified road, with the A265 in Burwash village 
and consists of the private access track leading about 130 metres eastwards 
from Shrub Lane towards the Burwash Wastewater Treatment Works (WTW) 
and an area used as a construction compound on the south side of the track. 
The WTW adjoins the application site at a lower level to the east with a 
substantial area of woodland, Park Wood, beyond. Park Wood includes areas 
of ancient and semi-natural woodland and is a Local Wildlife Site. Grassed 
fields border the access track on either side and a small block of coniferous 
woodland stands to the rear of the compound. Two residential properties are 
located off Shrub Lane opposite the WTW access and other properties are 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



present to the north and south of the access along the Lane. The whole area 
is within the High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).     

2. The Proposal 
 
2.1 The applicant is currently upgrading the WTW, which involves 
development that does not require express planning permission. However, to 
facilitate this development, works are required that do require planning 
permission, which the applicant is seeking retrospective approval, namely: (i) 
the temporary widening of the junction of the site access with Shrub Lane to 
allow construction vehicles to enter and leave the site safely, and (ii) the 
temporary change of use of part of a grassed field on the south side of the 
access track to a temporary construction compound (approximately 600sqm 
in area), incorporating offices and plant, car parking and a turning space for 
large vehicles. The applicant has indicated that the affected areas would be 
reinstated to their previous use and appearance when works to upgrade the 
WTW have been completed.  

3.    Site History  
 
3.1 There is no known recent development at the site. 
 
4. Consultations and Representations  
 
4.1 Rother District Council raises no objections. 
 
4.2 Burwash Parish Council has not submitted any observations.  
 
4.3 Flood Risk Management ESCC raises no objections. 
 
4.4 High Weald AONB Officer has no comments. 
 
4.5 The Highway Authority raises no objections and considers the 
proposed reinstatement of the access to be acceptable. However, it 
recommends that a condition is included requiring details to be submitted for 
approval on the works to the access so that they can be undertaken under an 
appropriate licence. 
 
4.6 NatureSpace raises no objections as the development has already 
been undertaken and the works are temporary in nature. However, as the site 
is located within a red impact zone for Great Crested Newts (GCN), in which 
there is suitable habitat and a high likelihood of the species being present, an 
informative is recommended reminding the applicant of the requirements to 
protect GCN under the regulations. 
 
4.7 Other representations: Three residents have raised concerns and 
objections to the proposal. These are primarily on the grounds of the removal 
of the hedgerow in the AONB, the inaccurate information in the application 
relating to the removal of the hedgerow and the proposed details for 
restoration. Other matters are also noted regarding impacts on drainage and 

Page 8



the highway. The residents request that the hedgerow should be reinstated to 
how it was before it was removed. It is also requested that the site access 
gates be set further back to accommodate large vehicles more easily off 
Shrub Lane.  
 
5. The Development Plan and other policies of relevance to this 

decision are: 
 
5.1 East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals 
Plan 2013: Policies: WMP10 (Management of wastewater and sewage 
sludge), WMP25 (General amenity), WMP26 (Traffic impacts) and WMP27 
(Environment). 
 
5.2 Rother District Local Plan Core Strategy 2014: Policy EN1 (Landscape 
stewardship).  
 
5.3 Rother District Development and Site Allocations Local Plan 2019: 
Policy DEN2 (High Weald AONB). 
 
5.4 The High Weald AONB Management Plan 2019-2024: Objective FH2 
(Field and heath – hedgerows). 
 
5.5 National Planning Policy Framework 2021: Part 15 (Conserving and 
enhancing the natural environment) is relevant. 
 
6. Considerations 
 
Purpose of the development 
 
6.1 Under its Environmental Permit, the applicant has been required by the 
Environment Agency to upgrade the WTW to meet revised requirements for 
the control of iron and phosphorous levels in the final discharge effluent. 
These works do not require express planning permission, as they benefit from 
being ‘permitted development’ under Part 13 (water and sewerage) of The 
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) 
Order 2015. However, the changes to widen the access and the works to 
construct the compound do require planning permission. The applicant 
considers these works are necessary to facilitate the upgrade of the WTW 
and in that respect, they are supported by Policy WMP10 of the Waste and 
Minerals Plan for development which contributes to meeting relevant 
environmental standards for wastewater treatment. 
 
Effects of the development 
 
6.2 As the applicant is seeking retrospective planning permission for the 
development, the works have therefore already taken place. The widening of 
the access to allow for less constrained movement of large vehicles and for 
greater visibility has resulted in part of the verge and hedgerow being 
removed on the southern side with more limited disturbance on the northern 
side. Although it is evident that vegetation associated with the hedgerow has 

Page 9



been removed, the application appears not to corroborate this. Moreover, the 
proposed restoration of the access indicates that the verges will be restored 
and replaced to their original appearance, but the details show the restoration 
to involve the application of a grass seed mix rather than restoration to a 
hedgerow. As such, the application appears to be contradictory. Nearby 
residents have also raised objections on the way the hedgerow has been 
treated and on the proposals for the restoration of the access: they seek 
restoration to a hedgerow in keeping with what was previously present. 
Hedgerows are important features in the local landscape and provide habitats 
for wildlife and are afforded specific protection under the Rother District Core 
Strategy and the High Weald Management Plan. Consequently, they should 
be protected and reinstated where they have been subject to damage and 
where the opportunity allows for it. This is a case where such reinstatement 
could be undertaken. Therefore, notwithstanding the proposals set out in the 
application, a condition is recommended which requires the applicant to 
submit revised details of the restoration of the access, including verge 
reinstatement and a planting plan for the restoration of the hedgerows along 
their previous alignments. In terms of the compound, this is proposed to be 
reinstated to grassland in keeping with the rest of the field and is considered 
to be acceptable.    
 
6.3 The widening of the access has also resulted in the need for temporary 
hard surfacing, which will be removed on reinstatement; two existing drainage 
gullies will also need to be accommodated as part of the reinstatement works. 
Nearby neighbours have referred to damage, including subsidence, on Shrub 
Lane following the widening works. Although these works should have been 
carried out under an appropriate licence, the reinstatement of the access with 
Shrub Lane is, in principle, considered acceptable by the Highway Authority. 
However, in order that these works are undertaken under licence, details on 
the reconstruction of the access, including for drainage and surfacing, should 
first be submitted for approval and to comply with Policy WMP26 of the Waste 
and Minerals Plan. Nearby residents have also noted that large vehicles 
overhang the access onto Shrub Lane if the site access gates are closed, 
thereby resulting in a potential hazard for other users of the Lane. It is 
uncertain whether this is a situation that has only occurred during the upgrade 
works or if it also occurs at other times. Therefore, a condition is 
recommended which requires the applicant to move the site access gates 
further into the site, unless it can be demonstrated that the overhanging of 
vehicles would not take place with the gates closed after the current upgrade 
works have been completed.   
 
7. Conclusion and reasons for approval 
 
7.1 In accordance with Section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 the decision on this application should be taken in 
accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 
 
7.2 The applicant is undertaking works to upgrade the Burwash WTW. To 
facilitate this, retrospective planning permission is sought for works to widen 

Page 10



the junction of the access to the WTW with Shrub Lane and for a change of 
use to a small area of land for use as a construction compound. The works to 
upgrade the WTW are permitted development, but the works to the access 
and construction compound require planning permission and as such, accord 
with Policy WMP10 of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove 
Waste and Minerals Plan 2013. However, the widening of the access has 
resulted in the removal of part of a verge and hedgerow, although the 
proposed restoration indicates that the southern part of the access, where 
most of the widening has taken place, would be grass seeded. This is not 
considered to be acceptable, and it is recommended that revised details 
should be required for the reinstatement of the access in respect of the verges 
and hedgerows, together with works to the highway. Subject to this 
requirement, the development can be considered to be acceptable and not to 
conflict with policies which seek to protect the AONB, safeguard general 
amenity and provide for appropriate access arrangements, namely Policy EN1 
of the Rother District Local Plan Core Strategy 2014, Policy DEN2 of the 
Rother District Development and Site Allocations Local Plan 2019, Policies 
WMP25, WMP26 and WMP27 of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton 
& Hove Waste and Minerals Plan 2013, Objective FH2 of the High Weald 
AONB Management Plan 2019-2024 and the provisions in Part 15 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2021.    
 
7.3 In considering this planning application, the County Council has worked 
with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner. The Council has also 
sought views from consultees and neighbours and has considered these in 
preparing the recommendation. This approach has been taken positively and 
proactively in accordance with the requirement in the NPPF, and as set out in 
the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(England) Order 2015. 
 
7.4 There are no other material considerations and the decision should be 
taken in accordance with the Development Plan.  
 
8. Recommendation 
 
8.1 To recommend the Planning Committee to grant planning permission 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 

with the plans listed in the Schedule of Approved Plans. 
  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 

planning. 
 
2. Before completion of the works to upgrade the Burwash Wastewater 

Treatment Works, details and drawings of works to reinstate the site 
access at the junction with Shrub Lane shall be submitted to the Director 
of Communities, Economy and Transport for approval in writing and shall 
include:- 

Page 11



 (i) Reconstruction of the verges to their alignment before the temporary 
widening works were undertaken; 

 (ii) A species planting plan for the reinstatement of the hedgerows to 
complement the existing hedgerows and to include numbers, size and 
spacings of plants; 

 (iii) Reconstruction of the affected part of the public highway and its 
interface with the Treatment Works access track, including surfacing and 
retention of existing gully drains; 

 (iv) Provision of a timetable for the reinstatement works, including for the 
restoration of the area of the temporary compound; and 

 (v) Provision for a five years aftercare plan for the planting associated 
with the reinstated hedgerows. 

 The approved details shall be carried out in full. 
  
 Reason: To secure an appropriate restoration of the access in the High 

Weald AONB in accordance with Policies WMP25 and WMP26 of the 
East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove Waste and Minerals 
Plan 2013, Policy EN1 of the Rother District Core Strategy Local Plan 
2014, Policy DEN2 of the Rother District Development and Site 
Allocations Local Plan 2019, Part 15 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2021 and Objective FH2 of the High Weald AONB 
Management Plan 2019-2024.       

 
3. Before completion of the works to upgrade the Burwash Wastewater 

Treatment Works, details of works to re-locate the site access gates 
further into the site in order to avoid large vehicles over-hanging Shrub 
Lane when the gates are closed shall be submitted to the Director of 
Communities, Economy and Transport for approval in writing, unless it 
can be demonstrated in writing that this will not be able to take place 
after works to upgrade the Treatment Works have been completed. 

 The approved details shall be carried out in full. 
  
 Reason: To secure a safe access in accordance with Policies WMP25 

and WMP26 of the East Sussex, South Downs and Brighton & Hove 
Waste and Minerals Plan 2013.      

  
INFORMATIVE 
 
1. The applicant is reminded that, under the Conservation of Habitats and 

Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) and the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), it is an offence to: deliberately 
capture, disturb, injure or kill great crested newts; damage or destroy a 
breeding or resting place; deliberately obstructing access to a resting or 
sheltering place. Planning approval for a development does not provide a 
defence against prosecution under these acts. Should great crested 
newts be found at any stages of the development works, then all works 
should cease, and Natural England should be contacted for advice. 

 
 
 

Page 12



Schedule of Approved Plans 
 
751149-JTX-XX-XX-DR-T-00003- Site Location Plan, 751149-JTX-XX-XX-
DR-T-00004- Existing And Proposed Site Layout Plans, 751149-JTX-XX-XX-
DR-T-00005- Vehicle Tracking 
 
RUPERT CLUBB 
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 
8 March 2022 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Application RR/861/CM 
The Development Plan 
National Planning Policy Framework 2021 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



RR/861/CM
Burwash Water Treatment Works, Shrub Lane, Burwash, TN19 73B

Rupert Clubb   BEng (Hons) CEng MICE, Director
of Communities, Economy and Transport, East
Sussex County Council

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of
Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. East Sussex County

Location Plan

Site

0 4.5 92.25 Kilometers

0 110 22055 Meters̄

Application Site

Sh
ru

b L
an

e

Text

Burwash Wastewater
Treatment Works.

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 16 February 2022
	5 Temporary widening of the treatment works access with Shrub Lane and temporary use of land adjacent to the works as a compound to include vehicle turning (part-retrospective). Burwash Water Treatment Works, Burwash, TN19 7EB - RR/861/CM
	Site Plan RR-861-CMa


